Register for the DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS

1863-1994 (Span dates 1910-1993)

MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

PG 137 & Unprocessed Photographs, Negatives, and Slides

9.7 linear feet

Larisa Repin Project Archival Processor for The Balch Institute of The Historical Society of Pennsylvania

March 2002

The Balch Institute of the Historical Society of Pennsylvania 1300 Locust Street Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107

This project was made possible with a generous grant from John C. Haas

# 19 Hollinger boxes of mss. 1 oversize box 1 folder oversize materials 1 Hollinger box of unprocessed photographs, slides, and negatives

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	page
Provenance	1
Biographical notes	2
Scope and content	4
Record series descriptions	5
Record box list	7
Series I: Professional & Organizational Materials	7
Subseries A: Writings, Speeches & Other Written Materials	7
Subseries B: Research Materials	7
Subseries C: General Materials	10
Series II: Personal Papers	14
Series III: Unprocessed Materials	15
Index of Subjects and Correspondents	16
List of newspapers	31

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

#### PROVENANCE

Additions to the Dennis Clark papers were given to the Balch Institute for Ethnic Studies by Dennis Clark himself from 1979 to 1993. The papers came in as many accessions, such as M79-23, M80-32, M83-22, M84-08, M87-20, M88-66, M89-18, M90-36, M91-53, M93-22, 2001-61, some of which were processed in March 2002 by Larisa Repin, archival processor for the Balch Institute of the Historical Society of Pennsylvania. This project was made possible with a generous grant from John C. Haas.

Materials are in English, and a few in Irish.

Some of Dennis Clark's papers had already been processed as MSS 37, and one photograph assigned PG 137. Many more photographs and some slides and negatives also came with these later documents, and they remained unprocessed as of March 2002. These materials have been placed in Series III, box 20, the last box in the manuscript collection.

A complete list of newspapers that have remained with the manuscript collection (Oversize Boxes 1) is offered on pages 31-32.

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

#### **BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES**

Dennis Clark was born in 1927 in Philadelphia. He graduated from St. Joseph's College, Philadelphia, in 1951, where did his undergraduate work in political science. In 1953-1954, Clark studied at the Fels Institute of Local and State Government at the University of Pennsylvania, and an early interest in social problems led to graduate study in sociology in 1955-1959 at the same university. In 1963, Clark went on to do further graduate work in history at Temple University, receiving his masters in history in 1966, and doctorate in the philosophy of history in 1970.

Dennis Clark's involvement with Irish organizations in Philadelphia began when he was still in high school. He devoured the fine collection of Irish books at a local library, and then worked for the Green Cross Society as a volunteer, collecting funds for relief of families of men jailed by the British on a prison ship. Later, while still an undergraduate at St. Joseph's College, Clark began the St. Brendan Society there to study Irish subjects. This group took him to New York, where he met his future wife, Josepha O'Callaghan, head of a similar group at Hunter College. They eventually had six children.

After serving in the army during World War II, Clark joined the Roscommon Men's Patriotic and Beneficial Society which sent him as their representative to the meetings of the Federation of Irish-American Societies. In 1947, he participated in the Irish Race Convention, organized by the American League for an Undivided Ireland in New York, a group ardently opposed to the partition of Ireland.

During the years 1951-1954, Clark was an information specialist at the Philadelphia Housing Authority, and then, in 1955-1957, a housing specialist at the Philadelphia Fellowship Commission (<u>q.v.</u> MSS 155). He also supervised the housing division at the Philadelphia Commission on Human Relations (1957-1961). From 1956-1973, Clark taught sociology and other subjects at St. Joseph's College and lectured at Pennsylvania State University on labor and urban problems (ca.1963). Clark directed the New York Catholic Interracial Council (1962-1963), and was on the staff of Temple University, from 1964 to 1971, where he lectured on housing, community organization and the history of U.S. minority groups. He was also the program director of Temple's Center for Community Studies, 1964-1965, and taught in the Irish Studies Program, which he founded, at Villanova University.

### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

In 1969, Clark helped promote the Northern Ireland Civil Rights Association, and eventually joined the Friendly Sons of St. Patrick, becoming its historian. And in 1971, he was simultaneously secretary, treasurer, and executive director of the Samuel S. Fels Fund, in Philadelphia.

Dennis Clark was a member of the American Conference for Irish Studies, of the Organization of American Historians and the Historical Society of Pennsylvania, and a charter board member of the National Catholic Conference for Interracial Justice. Occasionally he took part in broadcasts on Patrick Stanton's [q.v. MSS 31] Irish hour radio program, and wrote material for Owen B. Hunt for some of his radio broadcasts.

In 1953 Clark wrote for short-lived newspaper, <u>The Irish American</u>, and then, from 1981 to about 1991, for <u>The Irish Edition</u>, writing columns and reviewing books. In 1989 he wrote a 100-year history of the Donegal Association. He was also the author of numerous articles and several other books, some titles of which are: <u>Work and the Human Spirit</u> (1967), <u>The Irish in Philadelphia: Ten Generations of Urban Experience</u> (1974), <u>Irish Blood: Northern Ireland and the American Conscience</u> (1977), and <u>Erin's Heirs: Irish Bonds of Community</u> (1991).

Dennis Clark died in 1993.

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

#### SCOPE AND CONTENT

<u>Textual Records</u>: Although these materials span the years 1863-1994, actually there are no documents from 1863-1910 in this collection, and the bulk of the materials is concentrated between 1959-1993. There are mostly professional materials here, together with some personal, historical, and genealogical information about the Clark family.

The records in the small Series IA consist of writings, speeches, remarks, proposals, and book reviews, all by Dennis Clark. Series IB contains research and reference materials, including biographies and genealogies, book reviews, dissertations and studies, magazines, newspapers and clippings, projects and proposals, publications and other reference materials. There are also reports and summit meetings, speeches, addresses, statements, interviews, and surveys. General materials for the various organizations Clark was associated with (Series IC) include agreements, by-laws, conferences and other events, correspondence, directories, flyers and programs, histories, minutes of meetings, project narratives, reports, surveys, and oral interviews.

Series II consists of Clark's personal papers, including a biography, resume, interview, autobiography, and a family history written by him. Other records are correspondence, diaries (photocopies and microfilms), a few drawings, poetry, songs, and a play, and newspaper clippings with obituaries.

Unprocessed photographs, a few negatives, and slides are included in Series III, box 20.

The textual records, except for book reviews, bibliographies, financial materials, newspaper clippings, publications, reference materials, and surveys, have been indexed.

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

#### **RECORD SERIES DESCRIPTIONS**

#### SERIES I: PROFESSIONAL & ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS, 1910-1994 & n.d. Boxes 1-18, Oversize (OS) Box 1, Oversize (OS) Folder 1

This big series has been divided into three subseries in order to separate Clark's writings, his research materials, and general organizational materials.

SUBSERIES A: Writings, Speeches & Other Written Materials, 1959-1990 & n.d. Box 1

This small but interesting subseries contains numerous articles by Clark on subjects in many fields, and in particular, on Irish-American community history in Philadelphia. There are also a few speeches, remarks, proposals, projects, and book reviews, mostly for <u>The Irish Edition</u>. Family and personal histories written by Clark are in Series II. Materials are arranged alphabetically.

SUBSERIES B: Research Materials, 1919-1994 & n.d., Boxes 1-10, Oversize (OS) Box 1, Oversize (OS) Folder 1

As a writer, Clark amassed a large collection of research materials, such as biographies and genealogies, book reviews and bibliographies, projects and proposals, reports and summit meetings, speeches, statements, interviews, surveys, newspapers and print materials. The bulk of the materials here is dissertations, studies, and memoirs, and there are also some legal documents on the Anglo-Irish conflict, Ireland's independence, and human rights. The materials are in English with alphabetical arrangement.

SUBSERIES C: General Materials, 1910-1993 & n.d., Boxes 10-18, Oversize (OS) Folder 1

The materials here reflect Clark's involvement with such organizations as Center for Irish Studies, The Friendly Sons of St. Patrick, for which he was its historian, and Samuel S. Fels Fund, where he was an executive director. The records include agreements, by-laws, constitutions, correspondence, conference materials, minutes of meetings, directories, flyers and programs, some historical information, official

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

#### SERIES I: PROFESSIONAL & ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS, 1910-1994 & n.d.

#### SUBSERIES C: General Materials, 1910-1993 & n.d.

publications, projects and reports. There are surveys of views on Northern Ireland, and oral history interviews for Irish community, provided by Center of Irish Studies under a grant from the Samuel S. Fels Fund, in Philadelphia in 1988. The largest part of the materials is correspondence (1918-1993) which reflects, in particular, his and others' opinions and discussions of book reviews. Clark was invited to many events, such as the receptions for the ambassador of Ireland in 1986, the consul general of Ireland in 1990, and for Mary Robinson, the president of Ireland in 1993. There were many other similar invitations and events where he was either a guest or speaker. The materials are arranged alphabetically, in English. There are a few documents in Irish.

#### SERIES II: PERSONAL PAPERS, 1863-1993 & n.d., Boxes18-19

Unfortunately, there is not much real personal or family material in this collection, though these records include Clark's biography and resume, and an autobiography and family history written by him. This series also contains photocopies and microfilms of his fascinating diaries – probably the most interesting material in this series – correspondence, poetry, songs, a play, and drawings. Newspaper clippings here contain Clark's and some of his family members' photographs, and some obituaries (although not Clark's itself). The subseries is arranged alphabetically.

#### SERIES III: UNPROCESSED MATERIALS, n.d., Box 20

Unprocessed materials include photographs, slides, and a few negatives.

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

#### BOX LIST

## SERIES I: PROFESSIONAL & ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS, 1910-1994 & n.d. Boxes 1-18, Oversize (OS) Box 1, Oversize (OS) Folder 1

SUBSERIES A: Writings, Speeches & Other Written Materials, 1959-1990 & n.d. Box 1

#### Box Folder

1	1-6	Articles, speeches, remarks & proposals (by D. Clark) (For family and personal histories by D. Clark, see Box 18:11)	1959-90 & n.d.
	7	Book reviews (by D. Clark)	1974-89 & n.d.
	SUBS	ERIES B: Research Materials, 1919-1994 & n.d., Boxes 1-10, Oversize (OS) Box 1, Oversi	ze (OS) Folder 1
<u>Box</u>	Folder	<u>r</u>	
1	8	Biographies & genealogies	1991 & n.d.
2	1-6	Book reviews, bibliographies & other materials	1955-91 & n.d.
	7-8	Dissertations, studies, memoirs & other materials	1939, 1964
3	1-9	Dissertations, studies, memoirs & other materials	1971-93
		Cassette tape (in Box 20)	1976

1984-91

### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

# SERIES I: PROFESSIONAL & ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS, 1910-1994 & n.d.

## SUBSERIES B: Research Materials, 1919-1994 & n.d.

## Box Folder

4 OS Fo	1-7 older 1	Dissertations, studies, memoirs & other materials	n.d.
	8	Legal & other documents	1919, 1967-85 & n.d.
	9	Letters & other documents	1985 & n.d.
		Print materials	
		Magazines	
5	1	An Gael	1983
	2	Archeology: Ireland	1991
	3	The Bridge	1988
	4	Fortnight	1985-92
	5	Ireland	1987, 1991
	6	Ireland Today	1976-85
	7-12	Irish America	1986-93
6	1	Irish Heritage	1990-91
OS B	ox 1	Newspapers	

Irish Edition

### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

## SERIES I: PROFESSIONAL & ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS, 1910-1994 & n.d.

SUBSERIES B: Research Materials, 1919-1994 & n.d.

## Box Folder

Print materials

OS B	ox 1	Newspapers	
		Irish Literary Supplement	1984-92
		The Irish People	1978-87
		Irish Press	1981
		Saol	1990-91
		The Temple University News	1978
6 OS F	2-8 older 1	Newspaper & magazine clippings	1944-84
7 OS F	1-11 older 1	Newspaper & magazine clippings	1985-92 & n.d.
8	1	Projects & project proposals	1979-87 & n.d.
	2-9	Publications & reference materials	1921-85
9	1-9	Publications & reference materials	1986-94 & n.d.

### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

## SERIES I: PROFESSIONAL & ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS, 1910-1994 & n.d.

## SUBSERIES B: Research Materials, 1919-1994 & n.d.

## Box Folder

10	1	Reports & summit meetings	1920-21, 1978-85
	2-6	Speeches, addresses, statements & interviews	1945, 1954-90 & n.d.
	7	Surveys	1992
	SUBS	ERIES C: General Materials, 1910-1993 & n.d., Boxes 10-18, Oversize (OS) Folder 1	
Box	Folder	<u>-</u>	
10	8	Agreements	1911
	9	By-laws, constitutions & other documents, general	1937, 1967-87 & n.d.
		Center for Irish Studies	
	10	Application for Recognition of Exemption & other documents	1979-81 & n.d.
	11	Articles of incorporations	1981-89 & n.d.
	12	By-laws	n.d.
	13	Certificate of registration	1988
11	1	Correspondence	1981-88 & n.d.

### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

## SERIES I: PROFESSIONAL & ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS, 1910-1994 & n.d.

## SUBSERIES C: General Materials, 1910-1993 & n.d.

## Box Folder

Center for Irish Studies

#### Financial data

11	2-7	Bank statements & other documents	1981-88
	8	Budget materials & reports	1981-88 & n.d.
	9	Correspondence	1981-88 & n.d.
	10	Historical & other organizational information	1981-89 & n.d.
	11	Minutes & meetings	1981-83
	12-14	Surveys & oral interviews	1988
12	1-6	Surveys & oral interviews	1988
	7-13	Conferences, balls, dinners & other events	1929, 1945-93
13	1-14	Correspondence	1918-85
14	1-10	Correspondence	1986-93 & n.d.

### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

## SERIES I: PROFESSIONAL & ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS, 1910-1994 & n.d.

## SUBSERIES C: General Materials, 1911-1993 & n.d.

## Box Folder

15	1-3	Correspondence	n.d.
	4-5	Directories: Lists of members & guests, schedules & other materials	1980-82 & n.d.
OS Fo	6-13 lder 1	Flyers, programs, booklets & other materials	1948, 1969-93
16	1-2	Flyers, programs, booklets & other materials	n.d.
		The Friendly Sons of St. Patrick	
	3	Anniversary & banquet program	1910, 1989
	4-5	Correspondence	1981-93
	6	Directories	1982-91 & n.d.
	7	Financial data	1988
	8	Meetings & agendas	1988-92
	9	Official publications	1981-93
OS Fo	lder 1	Graphic materials: Plans & schemes	1981 & n.d.
	10	Historical & other organizational information	1983-86 & n.d.
	11-14	Minutes & meetings, general	1980-93 & n.d.

### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

## SERIES I: PROFESSIONAL & ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS, 1910-1994 & n.d.

SUBSERIES C: General Materials, 1910-1993 & n.d.

## Box Folder

Official publications

17	1	American Irish Political Education Committee: <u>American Irish Newsletter</u>	1986-92
	2	Donegan Society Bulletin	1955, 1959
	3	Irish American Cultural Institute: <u>Ducas</u> (Newsletter)	1983-92
		Irish American Unity Conference	
	4	National Newsletter	1991-92
	5-7	New Jersey Region Newsletter	1983-92
	8	Irish National Caucus, Inc.: National Newsletter	1979-85
OS Fc	9-12 older 1	Others: Newsletters & bulletins	1980-93
18	1-2	Project narratives	1973-89 & n.d.
	3-6	Reports	1981-93
	7	Resumes	n.d.
	8-10	Samuel S. Fels Fund: Correspondence	1974-88 & n.d.

## SERIES II: PERSONAL PAPERS, 1863-1993 & n.d., Boxes18-19

## Box Folder

18	11	Biographical materials: Autobiography & family histories by D. Clark	n.d.
	12	Certificates	1872, 1913 & n.d.
	13	Claim statement & correspondence	1977, 1979
	14-18	Correspondence	1877-1883, 1906, 1929, 1945-53
19	1	Correspondence	n.d.
	2-4	Diaries (photocopies)	1991-93
	4	Index	1948-93
		Microfilms (in Box 20)	1966-93 & n.d.
	5	Drawings	1978, 1991
	6	Play: "Compassionate Leave," by Patrick McDaid	n.d.
	7-8	Poetry & songs	1863, 1976-85 & n.d.
	9	Newspaper clippings: Photos of D. Clark, family members & others	1979-83 & n.d.
	10-14	Obituaries	1983-92 & n.d.

### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

# SERIES III: UNPROCESSED MATERIALS, n.d., Box 20

## Box Folders

20	1	Negatives	n.d.
	2-4	Photographs	n.d.
	5	Slides	n.d.

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

#### INDEX OF SUBJECTS AND CORRESPONDENTS (Correspondence is indicated by an asterisk)

Book reviews, bibliographies, financial materials, newspaper clippings, publications, except for those with D. Clark's articles, reference materials, and surveys are not indexed. Dennis Clark appears as a correspondent in almost all categories and thus has also not been indexed as such.

\*Ad Hoc Congressional Committee for Irish Affairs, 13:6, 14:5 \*Alexander, Harold, 13:7, 13:10 \*All Children Together, 13:14 American Committee for Irish Studies, 15:4, 16:10 \* American Conference for Irish Studies, 14:3, 14:7, 16:14 \*American Irish Historical Society, 13:8, 18:8 American Irish Historical Society, 16:10 \*American Irish Political Education Committee, 14:4 \*The American Jewish Committee, 14:5 \*American League for an Undivided Ireland, 13:2 \*American Protestant for Truth about Ireland, 10:6, 14:3-4 \*Ancient Order Hibernians in America, 12:13, 13:3, 13:10, 14:3, 14:7-9 \*The Andrew W. Mellon Foundation, 11:1 Anglo-Irish Agreement 1985, 4:8 Statement on Anglo-Irish Agreement by President of the United States, Ronald Reagan, 10:5 Anglo-Irish Intergovernmental Conference joint statement, 10:5 Anglo-Irish Summit Meeting Joint Committee, 10:1 \*Anti-Defamation League, 13:10 "Antietam Officials: 'No Irish Need Apply," 4:1 \*Archdiocesan Commission on World Peace and Justice, 13:10 \*The Atlantic Monthly, 13:8 Bacon, Margaret Hope, "My Irish Mother," 4:1 \*The Balch Institute for Ethnic Studies, 13:8, 13:11, 13:13, 14:2, 14:9, 15:1, 15:3-4 Barry, John, 1:8 Barry, Peter, extract from statement in Irish Parliament, 10:3 \*The Before Columbus Foundation, 12:11 \*Biaggi, Mario, 13:13-14, 14:2-4 \*Boston College, 13:14, 14:1, 14:6

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

Brannigan, Colm J., "The Luke Dillon Case and the Welland Canal Explosion of 1900; Non-Events in the History of the Niagara Frontier Region," 13:6 \*Bric, J. Maurice, 11:1, 13:9-10 \*British Embassy, 13:5 \*British Information Services, 10:4-5, 18:9-10 \*Bucks County St. Patrick's Day Parade & Committee, 12:13 Cameron, Dorothy: "A Brief History of the Presbyterian Church of Deep Run," 4:2 \*Campaign for Democracy, 14:7 Cannon, Dennis, 1:8 Carey, Mathew, 1:8 \*Carnegie Endowment, 15:4, 18:8 \*Cavanaugh, James R., 11:1 Cavanaugh, Michael J., statement on Irish Civil Rights, 10:2 \*Cetlic League American Branch, 14:7, 15:1 \*Cetlic News Service, 13:9 Cetlic Resource Network, 10:9 \*Center for Irish Studies, 10:10-13, 11:1-14 \*Central Intelligence Agency, 12:11 \*The Charitable Irish Society, 12:7 \*Chestnut Hill College, 13:5, 13:9 \*Christian Ireland Ministries, 14:1 \*The Churches Central Committee for Community Work, 13:6 \* Clan NA Gael United Brotherhood, 13:1, 14:6, 16:11 Clan NA Gael United Brotherhood, 10:1, 12:13 \*Clark, Bridgid, 4:2 \*Clark, Conna, 14:1, 14:3 Clark, Dennis, articles: "Appreciation," 1:3 "Artists Ascending," 1:3 "As Others See Us," 1:3 "Being In Ballygra," 1:6 "Changed Views of Irish-Americans on Northern Ireland Issues," 1:6 "Children-Never Full Citizens," 1:3

"Child World: America," 1:2

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

Clark, Dennis, articles (cont.):

"Clan NA Gael Salutes 70<sup>th</sup> Anniversary of the Irish Republic in Philadelphia," 1:3 "Convention Center Needs a Theme," 1:6

"Death to the English Spy...A Hale of the Irish-American Underground," 1:3 "Delaney Meets Mayor, Businessmen on Irish Investments," 1:4 "Derry Society Weighs Anglo-Irish Agreement," 1:3

"Enniskillen-The Last Atrocity?" 1:4

"Faminist Achievers: 19<sup>th</sup> Century Nuns," 1:3 "Fighting Exploitation, Alienation and Deportation," 1:3 "Fire of the Spirit at Corrymeela," 1:3 "Fragment From Judge Izador Kranzel's Family Life in Russia," 1:6 "Free at Last, But Maybe Too Late!" 1:3 "The Future of the Irish Community-Some Questions," 1:3 "The Future of the Society and Irish Interests in the San Francisco Area," 1:2 "The Future of Their Past: Nostalgia Is Not Enough," 1:6

"Greeting the Ambassador," 1:6

"Judge Eugene Maier Testifies at the U.S. Senate Treaty Hearing," 1:3

"Ireland, Israel, Irishmen, Jews: Reflections on Two Ancient Peoples," 1:5
"Ireland - a New Portrait of an Ancient Land: a Study Tour of Ireland's Social and Economic Change Set Against the Background of its Turbulent History," 3:5
"Ireland's Economy," 1:3
"Irish Book Publishers Seek Expanded Distribution," 1:4
"Irish Censorship in Perspective," 1:6
"Irish Implosion," 1:4
"The Irish in America: The Tradition Matures: 1870-1921," 1:5
"The Irish in the American Economy," 1:4
"The Irish in the United States: 1845-1870,' 1:2
"Irish Libraries: Cultural Bridgeheads in Divided Society," 1:4
"The Irish Relations," 1:3
"Irish Theater in Germantown," 1:4

#### Clark, Dennis, articles (cont.):

"Kilkenny Nun Promotes an Antidote to Bureaucracy in Aiding Needy,"

"Labors of Recollection: History in an Irish-American Community," 1:3 "Letters From the Underground: The Fenain Correspondence of James Gibbons," 1:2

"Mary Duffin-No Age Given," 1:3

"New Politics and Irish Tradition," 1:3 "Northern Ireland's Legacy of Conflict," 1:4

"O'Donoghue of Irish TV Speaks To World Affair Council," 1:6 "Old Bitterness-Racial Antagonism," 1:3 "The Organizations," 1:1

"Paddy's Payback: the American Impact on Ireland," 1:3
"Philadelphia Ceili Group: 25 Years of Frolic and Lore," 1:4
"Philadelphia: Forge for a Nation," three script portion for the Philadelphia project by Dennis Clark and James Michener, 13:4
"Philadelphia Lawyers Ponder Protestant Predicament," 1:3
"Photography Project Catches Those Irish Smiles," 1:4
"The Potential for Passion: the Affect of the Northern Ireland Problem on Irish-American Organizations in Philadelphia, 1969-1979," 1:3
"A Proposal to Prepare Historical Materials for the Bicentennial of the Founding of the Republic," 1:2
"Prospectus for a Course in the Irish Tradition," 1:1
"The Queen's Crooked Courts," 1:3

"Rose McNamara Fights On To Save Poor and Elderly," 1:3

"Salute to the Clan NA Gael," 1:4

"Schools to Have Irish Materials Presented," 1:4

"Speaking Irish in West Belfast," 1:3

"Studies Assess Mental Health Traits of Irish-Americans," 1:4

"Teaching and Researching Irish and Irish-American History,"- case studies from Philadelphia and Worcester, MA, (by Dennis Clark and James Flyyn), 1:3

Clark, Dennis, articles (cont.):

"Temple's Dublin Campus," 1:3 "A Time To Try Irish Souls," 1:4 Tour sites around center city of Philadelphia for Irish ethnic tour, 14:5 "Twelve Reasons Why England Will Not Leave," 1:6

"Unionist Visitors Tell of Tragedy," 1:4 "The Upraising Irish: A New Cultural Profile: 1982," 1:3

"Visions Emerge as Seamus Heaney Reads," 1:3

"Which Way the I.R.I.?" 1:2
"Why Will Philadelphia be the Most Currently Studies Irish Overseas Community in the World?" 1:2
"William Carroll, M.D.- Freedom Fighter," 1:6
"Women's Work: Illegal and Immemorial," 1:6
"Worlds of Our Past," 1:2

"X-Ray of the Irish-Americans," 1:4

"Years of the Dragon' Theaters Asians," 1:3 Coady, Michael, "The Story, the Poem, and the Search," 4:4 \*College of St. Thomas, 13:3 \*Columbia University in the City of New York, 13:4 \*Commodore Barry Club, 13:3-4, 14:7 \*Congress of the United States, 11:1, 13:14, 14:9 \*Connolly Association, 13:14 Connolly Association, 16:10 \*Consulate General of Ireland, 13:9, 13:14, 14:1, 14:6-7, 18:8 \*Consulate General of the United States of America, 14:6 \*Cooper, Bob, 14:1 \*Co-Productions RTE, 13:8-9 Crossin, William, 1:8 Cowan, Barry, transcript of radio interview, 10:5 \*Cultural Affairs Division, 13:14 \*Cumann Liteartha Agus Staire, 13:5-6 Curran, Edward, 1:8

Curriculum Conference on the Irish-American Experience, 12:10 Currie, J. Austin, 1:8 Cushmore, C. Laurence and Kingdon W. Swayne, "A Constitution for United Ireland," proposal, 8:1

Declaration for Peace in Ireland, 4:8 DeConcini, Dennis, 13:6 Deportation proceedings, 14:4 \*De Valera, Eamon, 13:4 De Valera, Eamon, 15:1 Devine family genealogy, by Donn Devine, 1:8 Devlin, Bernadette - interview [with], 10:6 \*Dillon, Luke, 10:1, 13:1 Dillon, Luke, 4:3, 13:6 \*Doherty, Joseph Patrick Thomas, 14:4-5 Dolly family genealogy, 1:8 \*Donegal Beneficial Social, Charitable and Patriotic Association, 13:2-3 Donegal Beneficial Social, Charitable and Patriotic Association, 10:9, 12:8, 12:11, 16:10, 16:14 \*The Donegalmen's Association in London, 13:2 \*Donlon, Sean, 13:10 Donnelly, James F.: "Catholic New Yorkers and New York Socialists, 1870-1920," 3:4 \*Donovan, Daniel C., 13:10 \*Dougherty, Charlie, 13:9, 13:11 Dougherty, Frank, 1:8 Doyle, David M., "American Immigrant Communities: A Critique of New England Models, With Special Reference to Irish America in 1890-1990," 4:3 \*Durkan, Michael J., 11:1 \*Edgar, Bob, 11:1 \*Eilberg, Joshua, 13:6 \*Eisenhower, Dwight D., 13:2 \*Elliot, John M., 11:1 Emergency Committee for Jobs in Ulster, 16:10

"Father Joe Marron - The Tale of an Orphan Boy," 1:4 Fawcus, Sally E., "The Irish in America and the Struggle for Irish Independence, 1917-1922," 3:1

\*Federation of American Societies for Irish Independence, 13:1 Ferry, Kate Collum, 1:8 Fielder, Mari Kathleen, "Green and Gold Reconsidered: The Identity and Assimilation Dilemma of the American Irish as Reflected in the Dramas of Edward Everett Rose," 3:5; "Up the Rebels: Republican Sentiment in the Recent Plays of Margaretta D'Arcy and John Arden," 3:6 Fitzgerald, Garret, addresses, 10:3, 10:4; interviews, 10:3, 10:5; remarks on the occasion of the Signing of the Anglo-Irish Agreement of the 1985, 10:5; reply to the Toast by President Ronald Reagan, 10:4; statement at the meetings with Margaret Thatcher, 10:1, 10:3 \*The Flax Trust, 14:1 \*The Ford Foundation, 18:8 Fratoe, Frank A. and Meeks, Ronald L.: "Business Participation Rates of the 50 Largest U.S. Ancestry Groups," preliminary report 3:7 \*French, George N., 13:8 Friends of Ireland St. Patrick's Day statement, 10:4 Friends of Ireland statement on the successful conclusion of the Anglo-Irish Summit, 10:5 \*Friends Peace Committee, 13:4 "From Peace Activist to Sinn Fein Supporter - Martha McClelland Works at Irish Problems," 4:2 \*Galway Men's Social & Benevolent Association of New York, 12:9 \*Genealogical Society of Pennsylvania, 13:8 \*Georgia Institute of Technology, 14:6 \*Goode, Wilson W., 13:13 \*Graham, Roger, 13:14 Green, Ronald, "Religious and Ethnic Conflict in America in the Period 1800-1860: A Comparative Study With the North of Ireland," 3:5 \*Hagerty, Eugene J., 13:2 \*Harrison, Barton E., 8:1 \*Haughey, Charles J., 14:4; speech at the opening of the New Ireland Forum, 10:3; speech to Fianna Fail Political Party, 10:2 \*Healy, Dolores C., 13:8

\*Heritage, 18:8

\*Hernan, Robert Emmet, 11:1, 11:12, 13:14, 14:2-3 History Project for the Philadelphia area, 13:8 \*Houghton Mifflin Company, 13:12 \*Hume, John, 1:8 Hume, John, 14:6; interview in Irish News, 10:5 \*Hunt, Owen B., 13:3 Jerome Foundation, 11:1 \*Judge Glancey for Supreme Court Committee, 13:9 Juliani, Richard N., "The Interaction of Irish and Italians: From Conflict to Integration," 4:4 "The Image of Themselves - Photographs of the Philadelphia Irish Community-Past and Present," 4:2 The International Bill of Human Rights, 4:8 Ireland's Declaration of Independence, 4:8 \*Irish America, 14:7, 14:9 \*Irish-American Club, 16:12 \* Irish-American Cultural Institute, 11:1, 11:14, 13:8, 13:10, 13:12-14, 14:2-3, 14:5-6, 14:9-10, 15:1-2 \*The Irish-American Cultural Institute News, 14:1 \* Irish-American Cultural Society of South Jersey, 14:9 \* Irish-American Express Concern for Old Country's Future If Division of Island Continues," 4:1 \*The Irish American Partnership, 14:3, 16:14, 18:4, 18:9-10 \*Irish-American Life, 14:7 \* Irish-American Unity Conference, 11:1, 13:13, 14:1-9, 18:5 \*The Irish Arts Center, 13:9, 13:13, 14:4 \*Irish Echo, 14:8 \*Irish Economic Studies, Inc., 8:1 \*The Irish Edition, 13:10-11, 13:13, 14:1, 15:3 The Irish Edition, 16:10 \*Irish Encyclopedia Ltd., 14:3 "Irish Eyes Still Smiling: Two Hundred Years in Philadelphia -A Portrait of Community," 4:2 \*Irish Information Service, 14:8 \*Irish Literary Historical Society, 13:5-6 \*Irish Literary Supplement, 14:7

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

\*The Irish Nation, 13:14 \*Irish National Caucus, 13:6-7, 13:9-10, 13:12, 13:14, 14:1, 14:4, 15:1-2, 18:3 Irish National Caucus, 16:10 \*Irish School of Economics, 14:1 \*Irish Teachers Association, 13:10, 16:14, 18:3, 18:8 Irish teachers project, 16:4 \*The Irish Times, 13:5 \*Irish World Citizen Organization, 13:14 Irish World Citizen Organization, 15:4 \*Kelley, Paul X., 12:12 \*Kennedy, David M., 13:12 Kennedy, Edward M., statement on the Anglo-Irish Treaty, 10:5 \*Kilkenny Men's Catholic, Social, & Beneficial Society of Philadelphia, 12:7 Kilkenny Social Services, 4:2 King's College's Irish teachers program, 15:4 Klein, Henry L., "A Study of the Men Who Lead Philadelphia's Civic Welfare Organizations," 2:8 Kuter, Lois, 13:12 Larkin, Patrick, 1:8 \*La Salle College, 13:9 Learry, Paddy, "Billy Green- Show Me Your Company and I'll Tell You What You Are," 4:2; "England's Antarctic War: From Stupidity to Death," 4:2 Leavenworth, Frederick Peabody, 4:6 \*Leonard, Tom, 13:5 \*The Library Association, 13:7 \*Mayo Association of Philadelphia, 12:8 McAndrews, Robert K., "Experience of Recent Irish Immigrants in the New York City Area," 3:8; "Ireland's Newest Exiles: Irish Immigration to New York in the 1980's," 3:8 McCloskey, Margaret, 1:8 McConakhie, Bruce, "The Cultural Politics of 'Paddy' on the Mid-Century American Stage," 4:3 McDermott, John A., "Hearing on Senate Bill 984 85<sup>th</sup> General Assembly," Testimony, 10:5

McFadden family, 1:8

\*McGarrity, Joseph, 13:1

McGarrity, Joseph, 1:8; memoirs, 2:7

McGinley, Catherine, "Irish-Americans in Philadelphia and Their Involvement in the Irish Independence Movement, 1914-1920," 4:5;

"The Irish and Prohibition in Philadelphia, 1919-1933," 4:3

\*McGuckin, John H, 13:8

\*McKeown, Michael, 4:9

\*McKeown, Patrick, 4:9

McMahon, Deirdre, "Eamon de Valera and the Irish Americans," 3:7

McManus, Sean, statement, 10:4; Eulogy on Sean MacBride, 10:6

\*McNelis, Patrick J., 13:2

Memorandum and Order on the Parties' Motions for Dismissal and Summary Judgment, 3:7

\*Midvale Steel Company, 10:8

Miller, Randal M. and Dougherty, Daniel J., "Settlement, Employment, and Service Patterns Among Recent Immigrants in Philadelphia: A Comparative Study of 'New Immigrants' from the Western Hemisphere, Asia, and Ireland," 4:3

\*Minnesota Historical Society, 4:6

\*Molyneaux, James, 14:6

\*Murphy, Brian, 14:7

\*Murphy, John A., 11:1, 12:12

\*Murphy, Thomas, 16:5

\*National Center for the Study of Corporal Punishment and its Alternatives in the Schools, 13:6

\*National Council for Voluntary Organizations, 14:7

\*National Public Radio, 14:5

\*NBC TV, 14:4

New Jersey Historical Commission multi-ethnic oral history project: Interview with Dominic Cassidy, 8:1

New Ireland Forum:

Address by Dick Spring at the opening, 10:3

Address by Joho Hume to the First Session, 10:3

\*<u>The New Republic</u>, 14:6

\*The New York Irish History Roundtable, 13:13-14, 14:6, 14:8

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

\*The New York Times, 11:1, 14:4, 14:7

\*New York University, 14:2 Noonan, Michael, statement at the British Irish Association Conference, 10:3 North American Committee for Reconciliation in Ulster, 16:10 \*North West Center for Learning & Development Ltd., 14:4 Northern Ireland: "Americans and Northern Ireland, 1968-79," by Joseph French, 3:2 Amnesty International's Stand on Human Rights in Northern Ireland, 4:8 "Attitudes Toward the Conflict in Northern Ireland in the 1990's," Irish-American survey by Padraig O'Malley, 10:7 "Conflict Resolution in Northern Ireland," by Wilbert H. McGaw, 8:1 Congressman Filbert to report on his tour of Northern Ireland, 13:6 "Constitutionalism in Northern Ireland," notes for discussion, 18:1 "Defining the Stakes: Temple Law School Hears Father Doyle on Northern Ireland," by Paddy Learry, 4:2 "The English System of Judicial Injustice in Northern Ireland," 13:8 Extract on Northern Ireland from speech of Brian Lenihan, 10:5 Fair Employment (Northern Ireland) Act 1976, 10:9 "Fair Employment in Northern Ireland and the MacBride Principles," 18:9 "The Future of Northern Ireland," policy statement by James Prior, 10:4 Human rights in Northern Ireland, 13:9 A New Constitution for Northern Ireland, 4:8 New Jersey/Northern Ireland Inter-Humanities Multi-Ethnic Project, 12:10 Northern Ireland: Cardinal O'Fiaich speaks on the Challenge to Christians posed by the Northern Ireland conflict, 10:5 Northern Ireland Constitutional proposals, 18:1 \*Northern Ireland Council for Voluntary Action, 14:6, 14:8 \* Northern Ireland Human Rights Assembly, 14:8, 15:2 \* Northern Ireland Information Service, 13:12, 14:9 "The Patriot Game: The Politics of Violence in Northern Ireland," 4:7 "Political Frustration and Violent Response: A Comparison of the Palestinians and the Catholics in Northern Ireland," by Eileen Marie Flanagan, 3:6 Proposed legislation to incorporate the MacBride principles into public employees pension funds investments with American firms having subsidiaries in Northern Ireland, 10:9 Report on violation of human rights in Northern Ireland, 18:5 Report of an Amnesty International Mission to Northern Ireland, 10:1

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

Northern Ireland (cont.): "Sectarianism, Discrimination and Class Determination in Northern Ireland," by M. Morrisey, 3:7 "Survey Shows Strong Views of Philadelphia Irish on Northern Ireland," 3:4 Symposium on human rights in Northern Ireland, 13:6 "Terror in Northern Ireland: The 'American Connection," by Robert V. Clarke, 4:2 "To Study the Feasibility of Establishing Fish and Shellfish Processing Plans in Northern Ireland and the Republic of Ireland," proposal of The Irish Economic Studies, Inc., 8:1 "The United States and Northern Ireland: The Carter Initiative and Its Aftermath," by Paul F. Power, 3:3 "Why Americans Should Not Support British Policy in Northern Ireland: The Concept of Majority Rule," 3:6 \*Northern Pacific Rail Road Company, 4:6 \*Notre Dame Law School, 13:14 The Notre Dame Sesquicentennial Irish Meetings, 12:13 O'Brien, James, 1:8 \*O'Brien, Vincent C. II, 14:8 O'Clerigh, D., "Anglos and Some Pathetic Irish Celebrate Charlie's Wedding," 4:2 O'Dochartaigh, Liam, 1:8 O'Donnel, Eugene, 12:11 \*O'Donnel, Robert, 13:13 \*Office of the Attorney General, 14:4 O'Hadhmaill, Feilim, "The Function and Dynamics of the Ghetto: A Study of Nationalist West Belfast," 3:8 O'Hagan, Carr Marry, 1:8 \*O'Kennedy, Daniel P., 13:6 O'Malley, Conor, 1:8; speech to Financial Women's Association, 10:2 \*O'Neill, Arthur S., 13:9 O'Neill, Thomas P., statement, 10:5 \*O'Reilly, Anthony J.F., 12:12 O'Rourke, Michael, 13:1 \*Our Lady of Mercy College, 13:12, 18:8

\*Patton, Patrick E., 14:8 \*Penn's Landing Corporation, 13:14 \*Pennsylvania Humanities Council, 13:10, 18:1, 18:8 "Constitutions: Ireland and America: A Dialog," project, 18:1 Perez, Javier De Collar, statement, 10:5 \*Philadelphia Ceili Group, 13:10, 13:12-13 14:2, 15:2-3 Philips, Marybeth C., "Putting on Airs," 3:8; "Seventeen Ways to Celebrate the 17<sup>th</sup> of March Year Round," 3:8 "A Plea for Understanding," 4:1 "Proposal for the Setting Up of a Therameutic Community in County Donegal," project, 8:1 \*Public Committee for the Humanities, 13:9 The Oueen vs. Gilbert Thomas Patrick McNamee: A Symphony Orchestrated for Guilt," 10:5 \*Queen's University of Belfast, 12:13 Remarks by Frances T. Shea, delivered to the Brehon Society of Philadelphia, 10:4 Remarks of William J. Casev at the La Salle University testimonial dinner in honor of the late Robert C. Ames, 10:5 \*Richards, Denis, 13:5 Ridgway, extract of ambassador testimony to the Senate Foreign Relations Committee in Washington, 10:5 \*The Rockefeller Foundation, 11:1 \*Rutgers University, 12:10, 14:1, 18:9 \*St. Brendan Society, 13:2 \*St. John's Point Drowning Disaster Appeal Fund, 13:2 \*St. John's University, 13:4 \*St. Joseph's College, 13:4 St. Joseph's University, 13:14, 14:5-6, 18:9 St. Patrick's Day celebrations, 12:13, 13:4 \*St. Patrick's Day Observance Association, 13:13, 14:1, 18:9 "St. Patrick Lament," by Jay Callahan, 4:4 \*St. Paul, Minneapolis & Manitoba Railway, 4:6, OS Folder 1 \*Samuel S. Fels Fund, 8:1, 11:1 \*San Jose State University, 13:5-6, 18:8 Sands, Bobby, "The Volume of Time," 4:1 Scott, M, "The Gibraltar Inquest - the Technical Evidence," 4:1

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

Silcox, Harry C., "Letters From An Irish Ward Leader: William McMullen to Samuel J. Randall, 1864-1890," 4:9; "Politics from the Bottom Up: Philadelphia Ward Leader William McMullen, 1824-1901," 8:9 \*Sinn Fein Foreign Affairs Bureau, 14:6 Sinn Fein press conference on British government censorship, 14:4 \*Shultz, Gerge P., 14:1 Skerrett, Ellen, "The Irish Parish in Chicago, 1880-1930," 3:3 \*Smith, Pyle Kathryn, 11:1, 11:12 "Society and Cultural Production: Minorities and Civil Rights," educational project, 18:2 \*Society of Commodore John Barry, 13:2, 18:10 \*Specter, Arlen, 14:4 Sprows, Kathleen A., "The Philadelphia Irish-American Community, 1920-1935," 3:9 \*Stanford University, 14:6 Statement by the President of American Protestants, 10:6 "The Story of Irish Music and Song in North America," 4:1 "Strained Relations: Irish-Americans Puzzle Leaders in Ireland", 4:2 \*Sullivan, Tadhg O., 13:11 \*Sullivan, Thomas J., 13:2 \*The Swarthmore College Library, 13:10, 13:12. 18:8 Sullivan, Margaret, "Where Did All the Irish Go?" 4:1 \*Sweeney, Brendan, 14:7 \*Temple University, 13:13 \*Temple University News, 13:6 \*Temple University Press, 13:4, 13:8, 13:12, 14:1, 18:8 \*Temple University School of Law, 13:14 Terence Cardinal Cooke, 12:9 \*Tribune Media Services, 14:1 \*Trinity College, 11:1 \*Ulster Genealogical & Historical Guild, 15:1 \*Ulster Historical Foundation, 13:12, 18:8 Ulster Project, 13:6, 13:14, 14:1, 14:3-5, 14:7, 15:2 \*Ulster Television PIC, 14:2 \*The United Irish-American Societies of Delaware Valley, 13:9-10, 18:8, 18:10 \*The United Irish-American Societies of Illinois, 13:14 \*United States Catholic Conference, 14:5 \*United States Department of the Interior, 14:3 \*U.S. Information Agency, 13:4

#### DENNIS CLARK PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22, 2001-61)

\*University of California, 13:12
\*University of Delaware, 13:9-10
\*University of Dublin, 13:13-14
\*University of Pennsylvania, 11:1, 13:9-11, 18:9
\*The University of Pennsylvania Irish Club, 10:9
\*University of Pittsburgh, 13:13
\*University of Ulster, 12:10, 18:9

\*Villanova University, 11:1, 13:9-10, 13:14, 14:1, 14:9 Villanova University Irish Studies Program, 11:14

\*Walsh, James, 13:6
\*WARD, 14:1
\*WCAU-TV, 13:5, 13:7, 13:9-10, 13:12-14, 14:1, 14:4
"Why Not Let Irish Go?" 4:4
\*WHYY-TV, 13:13, 14:2, 18:8-9
\*Willis, Robert J., 8:1
Wilson, Jessica V.: "Bridgid' and Other Daughters of Erin: Regional Variation & Cultural Change in Nineteenth Century Irish-America," 3:9
\*Wilson, Pete, 12:12
Wilson, Tom, "The Privileged and the People"- comment on Connor Cruise O'Brien's

review of 'Ulster: Conflict and Consent," 4:4

## DENNIS CLARK PAPERS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22)

## LIST OF NEWSPAPERS

## Irish Edition

1984	
	June
1985	
1006	June, Sept., Oct., Dec.
1986	
1007	Feb., March, Apr., May, July, Aug., Oct., Nov.
1987	Feb., May, Oct., Nov., Dec.
1988	reb., May, Oct., Nov., Dec.
1700	Jan., Feb., March, May, Aug., Dec.
1989	van., 1 00., maron, may, mag., 200.
	Feb., Apr., July, Oct., Nov., Dec.
1990	
	Jan., Apr., May, July, Dec.
1991	
	Jan., Feb., March, June, July, Sep., Oct., Dec.

## Irish Literary Supplement – A Review of Irish Books

1984-1992

## The Irish People

1978		
	Nov., 18	
1979		
1000	Nov., 24	# 14
1980		
	Sep., 13	# 37
	Oct., 4	# 40
1981		
	Apr., 4	#13
1984		
	Feb., 25	# 8
	Aug., 25	#34

## DENNIS CLARK PAPERS MSS 177 (M79-23, M80-32, M90-36, M93-22)

The Irish People (cont.)

1985		
	March, 16	#11
	March, 30	#13
	Apr., 20	#16
	Aug., 17	#32
	Sep., 7	# 35
1986		
	Apr., 31	# 5
1987		
	Jan., 31	# 5

# Irish Press

1981

## Saol

1990-1991

## The Temple University News

1978